
 

 
 

 

 
To: Councillor Reynolds, Convener; Councillor Malik, Vice Convener;  and Councillors 

Allan, Bell, Delaney, Henrickson, Radley, Sellar and Townson. 
 

 

Town House, 

ABERDEEN 22 September 2021 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 

 The Members of the LICENSING COMMITTEE are requested to meet remotely on 
WEDNESDAY, 29 SEPTEMBER 2021 at 10.00 am. 

  

 
FRASER BELL 

CHIEF OFFICER - GOVERNANCE 

  

In accordance with UK and Scottish Government guidance, meetings of this Committee will 
be held remotely as required. In these circumstances the meetings will be recorded and 
available on the Committee page on the website. 

 
B U S I N E S S 

 

 NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS 

 
 

1.1 Urgent Business   

 

 DETERMINATION OF EXEMPT BUSINESS 

 
 

2.1 Exempt Business   
 

 CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS 

 
 

3.1 Confidential Business   
 

 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
 

4.1 Declarations of Interest  (Pages 3 - 4) 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 
 
 

 DEPUTATIONS 

 
 

5.1 Deputations   

 

 MINUTES 

 
 

6.1 Minute of Meeting of the Licensing Sub Committee of 22 September 2021  

(Pages 5 - 6) 
 

 COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
 

7.1 Sexual Entertainment Venue Licensing - COM/21/231  (Pages 7 - 28) 
 

 
 

EHRIAs related to reports on this agenda can be viewed here 

To access the Service Updates for this Committee please click here 
Website Address: aberdeencity.gov.uk 

 
Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Mark 

Masson, tel 01224 522989 or email mmasson@aberdeencity.gov.uk  

 
 

https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/services/people-and-communities/equality-and-diversity/equality-and-human-rights-impact-assessments
https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ecCatDisplayClassic.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13450&path=0
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/


 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
You must consider at the earliest stage possible whether you have an interest to 
declare in relation to any matter which is to be considered.  You should consider 

whether reports for meetings raise any issue of declaration of interest.  Your 
declaration of interest must be made under the standing item on the agenda, 

however if you do identify the need for a declaration of interest only when a particular 
matter is being discussed then you must declare the interest as soon as you realise 
it is necessary.  The following wording may be helpful for you in making your 

declaration. 
 

I declare an interest in item (x) for the following reasons …………… 
 
For example, I know the applicant / I am a member of the Board of X / I am 

employed by…  and I will therefore withdraw from the meeting room during any 
discussion and voting on that item. 
 
OR 

 

I have considered whether I require to declare  an interest in item (x) for the following 
reasons …………… however, having applied the objective test,  I consider that my 
interest is so remote / insignificant that it does not require me to remove myself from 

consideration of the item. 
 

OR 
 

I declare an interest in item (x) for the following reasons …………… however I 

consider that a specific exclusion applies as my interest is as a member of xxxx, 
which is 

 
(a) a devolved public body as defined in Schedule 3 to the Act; 
(b) a public body established by enactment or in pursuance of statutory 

powers or by the authority of statute or a statutory scheme; 
(c) a body with whom there is in force an agreement which has been made 

in pursuance of Section 19 of the Enterprise and New Towns 
(Scotland) Act 1990 by Scottish Enterprise or Highlands and Islands 
Enterprise for the discharge by that body of any of the functions of 

Scottish Enterprise or, as the case may be, Highlands and Islands 
Enterprise; or 

(d) a body being a company:- 
i.  established wholly or mainly for the purpose of providing services to 
the Councillor’s local authority; and 

ii.  which has entered into a contractual arrangement with that local 
authority for the supply of goods and/or services to that local authority. 

 
OR 
 

I declare an interest in item (x) for the following reasons……and although the body is 
covered by a specific exclusion, the matter before the Committee is one that is 

quasi-judicial / regulatory in nature where the body I am a member of: 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4.1



 is applying for a licence, a consent or an approval  

 is making an objection or representation 

 has a material interest concerning a licence consent or approval  

 is the subject of a statutory order of a regulatory nature made or proposed to 

be made by the local authority…. and I will therefore withdraw from the 
meeting room during any discussion and voting on that item. 

 

Page 4



 
 

 

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

ABERDEEN, 22 September 2021.  Minute of Meeting of the LICENSING SUB 
COMMITTEE.  Present:- Councillor Malik, Convener; and Councillors Bell, Delaney 

and Radley. 
 
 

The agenda, reports and recording associated with this minute can be found 
here. 

 
Please note that if any changes are made to this minute at the point of 
approval, these will be outlined in the subsequent minute and this document 

will not be retrospectively altered. 

 

 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

1. There were no declarations of interest intimated. 

 

 
REQUEST FOR CAPACITY EXEMPTION - SAR GLOBAL LIMITED - INNOFLATE 
 

2. The Sub Committee had before it (1) an information sheet prepared by the Chief 

Officer – Governance, which advised that the applicant sought approval for a Public 

Entertainment Licence with a capacity of 2,500 for an event on 26/27 September 2021; 
and (2) the completed application, the event operating plan including the fire risk 
assessment and evacuation plan and the ground and first floor layout plans. 

 
The event Directors, Mr Rory Masson and Mr Scott Forrest and the owner of the premises 

Mr Darren Margach were in attendance and were represented by their agent Mr Stephen 
McGowan, who all spoke in support of the application and responded to questions from 
members of the Committee. 

 
Ms Hazel Stevenson, Environmental Health Manager and Sergeant Gillian Flett, Police 

Scotland were also in attendance and responded to questions from members of the 
Committee. 
 

The Sub Committee resolved:- 

(i) to approve the application and permit a capacity of 2,500 on 26/27 September 

2021; and 
(ii) to agree (1) to dispense with the Environmental Health Officer’s condition that no 

amplified music or noise emitted from the use of microphones/speakers or other 

forms of music entertainment within the outdoor drinking area is permitted; and (2) 
to allow the use of the aforesaid area until 22:30 hours. 

- COUNCILLOR M.TAUQEER MALIK, Convener. 

 
 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6.1

https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=624&MId=8098


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



 
 

 ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 
 

 
COMMITTEE Licensing Committee 
DATE 29 September 2021 
EXEMPT No 
CONFIDENTIAL No 
REPORT TITLE Sexual Entertainment Venue Licensing 

REPORT NUMBER COM/21/231 
DIRECTOR Gale Beattie – Director of Commissioning 
CHIEF OFFICER Fraser Bell – Chief Officer - Governance 
REPORT AUTHOR Sandy Munro 
TERMS OF REFERENCE 17 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

1.1 This report provides the Committee with the draft policy statement for Sexual 
Entertainment Venues, based on information gathered from public 

consultations and an evidence gathering session, and seeks authority to 
publicly consult on the draft policy statement. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

That the Committee: 
 

2.1 instructs the Chief Officer – Governance to publicly consult on the draft policy 

statement and report back to the Licensing Committee on 26 October 2021 with 
the results. 

 
 

3. BACKGROUND 

 

3.1 Section 76 of the Air Weapons and Licensing (Scotland) Act 2015 adds new 

sections 45A to 45C to the Civic Government (Scotland) Act 1982 (‘the 1982 
Act’) in order to introduce a discretionary licensing regime for SEVs. Section 76 
also amends section 41 of the 1982 Act to specifically exclude sexual 

entertainment venues from the definition of places of public entertainment, 
which ensures that a public entertainment licence cannot also be required for 

those venues. An SEV licence will only be required where a local authority 
makes a resolution in these terms under new section 45B of the 1982 Act.  

 

3.2  The Committee resolved to licence SEVs on 3 December 2019 with an 
implementation date of 1 January 2021. As a result of Covid-19 the date of 

implementation was revised to 1 December 2021 at the Committee meeting of 
10 November 2020. 

 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 7.1



 
 

3.3 A local authority must, not later than 28 days before the date of implementation 
publish the policy statement. As the amended date of implementation is 1 
December 2021 the final policy statement must be published by 3 November 

2021. In order to have the final policy statement approved on 26 October 2021 
approval is sought to publish the draft policy statement attached as Appendix 1 

and to report back to committee on 26 October with the consultation results to 
enable the final policy statement to be approved. 

 

3.4 Two public consultations have been held to establish evidence for the content 
of the draft policy. Those were followed up with an evidence gathering session 

held with some Members of the Committee, representatives of the trade, Police 
Scotland and members of the public. The links to the consultation exercises 
were also sent directly to Aberdeen Cyrenians, GMB Union, Grampian Rape 

Crisis, Grampian Regional Equality Council, Grampian Women’s Aid, 
Parentline, Scottish Children’s Reporter, United Voices, Women’s Aid and all 

Community Councils. The consultation responses are attached as Appendix 2. 
 

4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 

4.1 The report merely seeks authority to publicly consult on the draft policy 

statement so there are no financial implications. 
 

 
5.  LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 

5.1 Consultation on the draft policy will allow a final policy statement to be approved  
in time for publication 28 days prior to implementation as required by the 
legislation. 

 
 

6. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 

 
 

Category Risk Low (L) 
Medium (M)  

High (H) 

Mitigation 

Strategic 
Risk 

N/A   

Compliance N/A   
Operational N/A   
Financial N/A   
Reputational Failing to consult 

would mean a lack of 
input from relevant 

stakeholders prior to 
implementation of 
any policy 

L The report seeks authority 

to consult on the draft policy 
statement. 

Environment 

/ Climate 
N/A   

 

Page 8



 
 

7.  OUTCOMES 

 The proposals in this report have no impact on the Council Delivery Plan. 
 
 
8. IMPACT ASSESSMENTS 

 
 

Assessment Outcome 

 

Impact Assessment 
 

Full impact assessment not required at this stage 
 

Data Protection Impact 

Assessment 
Not required 

 
9. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 

9.1 Committee Report GOV/19/452 
9.2 Committee Report COM/20/190 

 
 
10. APPENDICES  

 
10.1 Draft Policy Statement 

10.2 Consolidated consultation responses. 
 
11. REPORT AUTHOR CONTACT DETAILS 

 
Name Sandy Munro 
Title Solicitor 
Email Address AleMunro@aberdeencity.gov.uk 

 

  

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Sexual Entertainment Venue Licensing Policy3 

 

Contents  

1. Definitions 

2. Introduction 

3. Locality 

4. Preventing nuisance, crime & disorder 

5. Securing public safety 

6. Protecting children and young people from harm 

7. Reducing Violence Against Women 

8. Waivers and Exemptions  

9. Licensing Conditions 

 

  

Page 11



1. Definitions 

1982 Act means the Civic Government (Scotland) Act 1982;  

Building Standards and Public Safety means the Council’s building standards and 

public safety team; 

CCTV means closed circuit television;  

Civic Licensing Standards Officer has the definition in section 45G of the 1982 

Act;  

Councillors Code of Conduct means the code of conduct published by the 

Standard Commission for Scotland; 

Aberdeen City Council”, “the Council” or “Local Authority” means Aberdeen City 

Council, a Local Authority in terms of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1994 

having its principal place of business at Marischal College, Broad Street, 

Aberdeen, AB10 1AB;  

Information Commissioner’s Office means the Information Commissioner’s 

Office having its head office at Wycliffe House, Water Lane, Wilmslow, Cheshire, 

SK9 5AF;  

Licensing Committee or “Committee” means Aberdeen City Council’s licensing 

committee; 

Regulations means the UK General Data Protection Regulation (EU 2016/679) 

and any such amendments;  

Scottish Fire and Rescue Services is a body corporate established under the 

Police and Fire Reform (Scotland) Act 2012 and having its registered 

headquarters at Westburn Drive, Cambuslang, G72 7NA;  

Scottish Government’s Equally Safe Strategy means Scotland’s strategy for 

preventing and eradicating violence against women and girls;  

Sex Shop has the meaning given under Schedule 2 of the 1982 Act;  

SEVs means sexual entertainment venue  

S.I.A means security industry authority;  

Sexual Entertainment Venue Policy” or “Policy” means the Licensing 

Committee’s sexual entertainment policy as required under Schedule 2 of the 

1982 Act;  

Page 12



Standards Commission for Scotland means the St Commission for Scotland 

having its registered address at Scottish Parliament, Edinburgh, EH99 1SP;  

Part means a part of this policy;  

Performer means a person who provides sexual entertainment within a venue; 

and  

Police Scotland means the police service of Scotland having its headquarters at 

Tulliallan Castle, Kincardine. 

 

2. Introduction 

Under section 45C of the 1982 Act the Local Authority is required to produce a 

Sexual Entertainment Venue Policy where it has passed a resolution to licence 

SEVs.  

The Committee’s Policy identifies the Committee’s approach to the regulation 

of SEVs and the processes to be followed relating to applications for licences of 

this kind. This Policy provides guidance for potential applicants, existing licence 

holders and members of the public on the licensing of SEVs.  

It must be made clear from the outset that the Committee does not take a moral 

stance on SEVs in adopting this Policy. It is the Committee’s role to regulate such 

venues in accordance with the law. 

It should be noted that the definition of a SEV is defined in law and not by the 

Committee. The 1982 Act defines a SEV at section 45A (2) as any premises at 

which sexual entertainment is provided before a live audience for (or with a view 

to) the financial gain of the organiser.  

This definition is extremely complex and at sections 45A (3) and (4) of the 1982 

Act it provides that for the purposes of the definition of a SEV, the following 

further definitions apply:  

‘audience’ includes an audience of one;  

‘financial gain’ includes financial gain arising directly or indirectly from the 

provision of sexual entertainment;  

‘organiser’ means either the person who is responsible for the management of 

the premises or the organisation or management of the sexual entertainment 

or where that person exercises that responsibility on behalf of another person 

Page 13



(whether by virtue of a contract of employment or otherwise), that other 

person;  

‘premises’ includes any vehicle, vessel or stall but does not include any private 

dwelling to which the public is not admitted;  

‘sexual entertainment’ means any live performance or any live display of nudity 

which is of such a nature, ignoring financial gain, must be reasonably assumed 

to be provided solely or principally for the purpose of sexually stimulating any 

member of the audience; and  

“display of nudity” means: in the case of a woman, the showing of (to any extent 

and by any means) her nipples, pubic area, genitals or anus; and, in the case of 

a man, the showing of (to any extent and by any means) his pubic area, genitals 

and anus. 

 

3. LOCALITY 

The Committee considers that the character of the relevant locality, the use to 

which premises in the vicinity are put, and the layout, character or condition of 

the venue in respect of which the application is made, are relevant 

considerations when determining the grant of a SEV licence.  

With reference to paragraph 9(7) of Schedule 2 of the 1982 Act, “relevant 

locality” means:  

a. In relation to the premises, the locality where they are situated; 

b. In relation to a vehicle, vessel or stall, any locality where it is desired to 

use it as a SEV.  

 

The Committee, having regard to the consultation responses received to the 

initial consultation and evidence sessions, particularly in relation to the 

appropriate number of SEVs within the Local Authority area and relevant 

locality, considers that there are two relevant localities within Aberdeen City. 

The first relevant locality is the City Centre as illustrated in the map below, and 

the second locality is Outwith City Centre, comprising all areas out with the city 

centre boundary as detailed below but within the Local Authority boundary. 

 

Page 14



 

 

Appropriate Number of SEVs in a Relevant Locality  

As set out within paragraph 9(5)(c) of Schedule 2 of the 1982 Act, the Council 

may refuse an application for a SEV if it is satisfied that the number of SEVs in 

the relevant locality at the time the particular application is made is equal to or 

exceeds the number which the local authority consider is appropriate for that 

locality. The Council is able to determine that the appropriate number for a 

locality is nil. 

The Council may choose to set an upper limit guide on the number of SEVs which 

it considers appropriate in any area within the Council’s control. That being the 

case, each application will be considered on its own merits at the time the 

application is submitted to the Council.  

The Committee considers the appropriate upper limit for the City Centre Locality 

to be six.(For the Committee to decide)   

The Committee considers the appropriate upper limit for the Outwith City 

Centre Locality to be zero. 

 

Page 15



Character & Vicinity of Relevant Locality 

In considering whether the grant, renewal or variation of the licence would be 

inappropriate given the vicinity in which the SEV premises operates, the 

Committee shall consider the existing character and function of the area. Due 

regard will be given to the following:  

a. Whether the premises are situated in a residential area  

b. Whether there are any schools and other places of education near the 

vicinity of the premises  

c. Whether there are any places of worship in that vicinity  

d. Whether there are other relevant businesses or charities operating in the 

area e.g. homelessness shelters, women’s refuges, supported 

accommodation, recovery units  

e. Whether there are certain landmarks or facilities in the vicinity (e.g. 

historic buildings, sports facilities, cultural facilities, family leisure 

facilities, play areas or parks, youth facilities, retail shopping areas, and 

places used for celebration of commemoration  

f. Whether there have been incidents involving anti-social behaviour, sexual 

assaults or more minor harassment reported in that area  

g. Whether there have been incidents of human trafficking or exploitation 

in that area  

The Committee will consider relevant locality on a case by case basis, taking into 

account the particular circumstances of each application. 

 

Suitability of Premises  

 Under the 1982 Act the Committee has the discretion to refuse applications 

relating to SEVs if it is considered that the grant or renewal of the licence would 

be unsuitable, having regard to the layout, character or condition of the 

premises, vehicle, vessel or stall in respect of which the application is made.  

 It is expected that when an application for a SEV licence is made, that the 

applicant will be able to demonstrate that the immediate vicinity, layout, 

character and/or condition of the premises is appropriate to the relevant 

entertainment proposed at the premises. 

Page 16



4. PREVENTING NUISANCE, CRIME & DISORDER 

The Licensing Committee is committed to improving the quality of life for the 

people of the City by adopting and enforcing policies designed to increase 

community safety and reduce threats of nuisance, crime and disorder. 

In terms of this licensing objective the Committee considers there to be a 

number of factors, including but not limited to: 

 Illegal substances  

 Violent behaviour  

 Anti- social behaviour  

 Vulnerability 

 Noise nuisance 

 Human trafficking 

In order to combat the risks, the Committee will seek to operate a partnership 

approach with licence holders, applicants and partner agencies: 

What the Committee will do: 

 Apply appropriate conditions to licences to mitigate potential nuisance, 

crime or disorder. 

 Ensure all policies are kept up to date and fit for purpose 

 Work closely with all stakeholders to ensure all relevant information is 

kept up to date and accessible 

 Endorse initiatives designed to prevent nuisance, crime and disorder  

 Consider the review of licences where a breach of the licensing objective 

cannot be rectified by other means  

What the Committee will expect of Licence Holders: 

 Effective and responsible management of premises including evidence of 

written procedures for preventing and managing incidents  

 Up to date training and supervision of staff  

 Provision of effective CCTV in and around premises 

 Provision of external lighting and security measures 

 Co-operation with police and Civic Licensing Officers  

 Accurate and up to date record keeping  

 Adequate control of entry and exit of the premises 

 Supervision of anyone outside, such as smokers or those queuing to enter 

Page 17



What the Committee  will expect of Partner Agencies  

 Provision of all relevant up to date information as the Committee requires  

 Involvement in mediation/intervention procedures to rectify any problem 

areas  

 Involvement in Licence Review as a last resort  

 

5. SECURING PUBLIC SAFETY 

The Licensing Committee is committed to ensuring the safety of persons within 

licensed premises as well as those in the surrounding area. 

When considering this Licensing Objective, a number of factors should be 

considered including, but not limited to: 

 Layout and maintenance of premises  

 Disabled access and facilities 

 Vulnerability of patrons and staff 

Again, the Committee will look to operate a partnership approach with all 

stakeholders in order to ensure that public safety is not compromised by the 

operation of licensed premises. 

What the Committee will do: 

 Promote education and awareness of potential risks 

 Apply additional licence conditions where appropriate for the purposes of 

this licensing objective 

 Facilitate effective communication between all relevant parties  

 Disseminate relevant information from partner agencies as widely as 

possible 

 Review licences as a last resort  

What the Committee will expect of Licence Holders/Applicants  

 Appropriate layout of premises 

 High standards of maintenance of premises 

 Functioning CCTV systems of the required specification 

 Accurate disability access statements 

 Clear and accurate signage in and around premises  

Page 18



 Designation of a “safe space” within the premises in which vulnerable 

persons can be provided with assistance 

 Regular maintenance and testing of security and operating systems 

 Clear policies on conduct of staff, performers and customers 

What the Committee will expect of partner Agencies  

 Co-operative approach 

 Effective communication and the sharing of up to date relevant 

information 

 Involvement in a licence review as a last resort 

 

6. PROTECTING CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE FROM HARM 

The Committee considers SEVs could potentially expose children and young 
people to harm as a result of them coming into contact with activities intended 
for adults only if not properly regulated.  
 
What the Committee will do: 

 Promote education and awareness of potential risks 

 Apply additional licence conditions where appropriate for the purposes of 

this licensing objective 

 Facilitate effective communication between all relevant parties  

 Disseminate relevant information from partner agencies as widely as 

possible 

 Review licences as a last resort  

What the Committee will expect of Licence Holders/Applicants  

 Robust policies on age verification 

 Discrete exterior to premises 

 Accurate record keeping for staff and performers 

What the Committtee will expect of partner Agencies  

 Co-operative approach 

 Effective communication and the sharing of up to date relevant 

information 

 Involvement in a licence review as a last resort 

 

Page 19



7. Reducing Violence against women 

Equally Safe: Scotland's strategy for preventing and eradicating violence against 
women and girls was first published by the Scottish Government in 2014 and 
updated in 2016 and 2018. It sets out a definition of violence against women 
and girls which includes ‘commercial sexual exploitation, including prostitution, 
lap dancing, stripping, pornography and human trafficking’. Whilst recognising 
the conflict between this definition and the licensing of SEV, the Scottish 
Government seeks to ensure that such activities take place in safe and regulated 
environments. As detailed under the objective Securing Public Safety, the 
Committee is committed to taking appropriate and necessary action where the 
safety of customers visiting and staff and performers working in licensed SEVs 
has been compromised. However, it remains primarily the responsibility of the 
SEV licence holder to provide a safe and secure environment for members of 
staff, performers and the public.  
 

What the Committee will do: 

 Scrutinise applications to ensure an applicant is fit and proper to hold the 

licence 

 Promote education and awareness of potential risks 

 Apply additional licence conditions where appropriate for the purposes of 

this licensing objective 

 Facilitate effective communication between all relevant parties  

 Disseminate relevant information from partner agencies as widely as 

possible 

 Review licences as a last resort  

What the Committee will expect of Licence Holders/Applicants  

 Robust policies to mitigate against any violence, physical or emotional, 

against women occurring in the venue 

 Clear signage as to required conduct of customers 

 Adequate procedures to resolve any incidents which may result in 

violence against women 

 Suitable working conditions for any women employed or performing 

within the premises 

What the Board will expect of partner Agencies  

 Co-operative approach 

Page 20



 Effective communication and the sharing of up to date relevant 

information 

 Involvement in a licence review as a last resort 

 

8. WAIVERS AND EXEMPTIONS 

The Committee can grant a Waiver if they consider that to require a Licence 
would be unreasonable or inappropriate. The Committee will take into account:  

 Any objections or representations  

 This Licensing Policy Statement 

 Scottish Government Guidance 

 Any other relevant considerations. 
 
The Committee will consider each Application on its own merits but is of the 
opinion that waivers will only be granted in exceptional circumstances.  

 
OCCASIONAL USE (“THE 4-IN-A-YEAR EXEMPTION”)  
 
8.1. Premises can be used for Sexual Entertainment for a proposed event (not 

exceeding 24 hours) if the Premises have been used for Sexual 
Entertainment on not more than 3 previous occasions in the past 12 
months (Section 45A(9) of the 1982 Act).  

8.2. Each occasion can last no more than 24 hours. If Premises operate as a 
Sexual Entertainment Venue for more than a 24 hour period, each period 
of 24 hours (and any part of a period of 24 hours) is to be treated as  a 
separate occasion (Section 45A(10) of the 1982 Act).  

8.3. The rule applies to a rolling year, not the calendar year running from 1st 
January to 31st December.  

 
9. Licensing Conditions  

Any  SEV  Licence  will  have  the  following  Standard  Conditions applied, made  
by  the  Council under Section 45F of the Civic Government (Scotland) Act 1982. 
Any SEV Licence may also be subject to additional conditions as determined by 
the Council,  known  as  Special  Conditions. 

In the event of a conflict between the Standard Conditions and any Special 
Conditions, the Special Conditions shall prevail. Both the Council’s Standard 

Page 21



Conditions and any Special Conditions are subject to any Mandatory Conditions 
prescribed by Scottish Ministers under Section 45Eof the 1982 Act. 

 

Standard Conditions 

External Appearance of the Venue and Public Displays of Information 
The Licence holder shall ensure: 
1. That there is to be no advertisement or promotional material used by the 

venue on the exterior of the venue that is unsuitable to be viewed by 
children, for example, by way of sexually provocative imagery. The licence 
holder shall ensure that any exterior signage is discreet and must not 
display any imagery that suggests or indicates relevant sexual 
entertainment takes place within the venue. Any external displays or 
advertising may only be displayed with the prior written approval of the 
Council. 

2. The interior of the venue must not be visible to persons outside. 
3. That all charges for products and services shall be displayed in prominent 

areas within the venue. 
4. That an appropriate code of conduct for customers is displayed in 

prominent areas within the venue, and at each customer table and in the 
bar area. 

5. Performers at the venue should always be covered by a jacket when they 
are outside the venue at any time it is open and when they are intending 
to perform within the venue that night/morning. 

6. That the use of any cruising cars or any other vehicles by the venue to 
solicit customers and/or transport to or from the venue is prohibited. 

7. The licence must be prominently displayed at all times so as to be easily 
read by all persons using the venue. 

 
Control of Entry to the Venue 
8. No person under the age of 18 years shall be permitted admission to the 

venue at any time it is being used under this licence. 
9. No person under the age of 18 years shall work at the venue as a 

performer. 
10. The Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the venue 

whereby any person suspected of being under 25 years of age shall be 
required to produce identification proving they are over 18 years of age. 
The only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic 
identification cards, such as a driving licence or passport. 

Page 22



11. The venue shall maintain a refusals log whereby on any occasion where a 
person is refused entry it shall be recorded and available upon request by 
Police Scotland or an authorised officer of the Council. 

12. A person who holds a licence granted under section 8 of the Private 
Security Act 2001 must be positioned at every entrance to the venue from 
1am (on any day when the venue is open at that time) until whichever is 
the earlier: 
The time at which the venue next closes; or 
[terminal hour] or such other time as the Committee may specify. 

13. That any person who appears to be intoxicated or under the influence of 
illegal drugs shall not be permitted entrance to the venue. 

14. That a policy of random searches of persons entering the venue is 
operated at all times when the venue is open to customers. 

15. Any person found to be in possession of illegal drugs upon entry shall be 
prevented entry to the venue. 

16. Reasonable steps must be taken to ensure that any person found using 
illegal drugs in the venue shall be appropriately removed from the venue. 

 
Conduct of Performers and Rules relating to Performances of Sexual 
Entertainment 
17. The licence holder shall ensure there is a written code of conduct for 

performers who work in the venue and staff who are employed in the 
venue. This must include explaining the conditions of the SEV licence to 
all staff and performers and also that their activities will be recorded on 
CCTV. 

18. The licence holder must also provide an information pack to all 
performers and staff which should include at least the following 
information: 
i. A copy of the SEV licence; 
ii. Details of how to report a crime to Police Scotland; 
iii.  Details of unions, trade organisations or other bodies that represent 

the interests of performers; 
iv. A copy of the code of conduct referred to in condition 17 above; 
v. A copy of the code of conduct for customers referred to in condition 

4 above; and 
vi. Price lists for drinks and separately sexual entertainment. 

19. There must be no topless nudity by performers in public areas of the 
venue with the exception of topless performances within any 
performance area within the venue. (specifically where lap dancing is the 
sexual entertainment being provided within a venue) 

Page 23



20. Performers must replace their tops at the end of each private 
performance and at the end of any stage performance. (specifically where 
lap dancing is the sexual entertainment being provided within a venue) 

21. Performances of sexual entertainment may only take place in designated 
areas of the venue as agreed in writing by the Council. 

22. There shall be no photography permitted by customers, staff or 
performers in the venue. 

23. Customers must remain seated for the duration of a performance with 
the exception of requiring the toilet or using the bar within the venue. 

24. Performers shall not arrange to meet, or have further contact with, 
customers outside of the venue when working. 

 
The Protection of Performers and the Prevention of Crime in the Venue 
25. Performers must be provided with secure and private changing facilities 

so that no customers in the venue can access these facilities. 
26. All entrances to private areas within the venue to which members of the 

public are not permitted access shall have clear signage stating that access 
is restricted. 

27. Any exterior smoking area for use by performers shall be kept secure and 
separate to any public smoking area. 

28. The licence holder shall implement a written policy to ensure the safety 
of performers when leaving the venue following any period of work. 

29. Private booths must not be fully enclosed. (specifically, where lap dancing 
is the sexual entertainment being provided within a venue) 

30. There must be a minimum of one member of security staff present on any 
floor where a performance of sexual entertainment is taking place and 
one member of security staff at the entrance to the venue, at all times 
when the venue is open to the public. 

31. There shall be no alterations to the layout plan of the venue without the 
prior written approval of the Council. 

 
Record Keeping and Management 
32. All performers and staff shall be required to provide to the manager of 

the venue, valid identification prior to first performing or working at the 
venue. Valid forms of identification are recognised photographic 
identification such as passport or driving licence. 

33. All performers and staff shall be eligible to work in the UK and proof of 
eligibility records shall be kept on the venue. Management shall ensure 
that such records are regularly checked to ensure compliance and these 

Page 24



should be provided to Police Scotland or an authorised officer of the 
Council on request. 

34. Accurate payment and remuneration records must be maintained and 
made available upon request to Police Scotland or an authorised officer 
of the Council. 

35. A fully operational CCTV system must be used within the venue which 
complies with the Data Protection Act 2018 Act and Regulations, covering 
all areas of the venue to which the public have access, including 
entrances, exits, private booths and bar area. The CCTV must be fitted and 
maintained in full working order in accordance with the guidance 
provided by the Information Commissioner’s Office and to the satisfaction 
of Police Scotland. 

36. CCTV footage must be made available to Police Scotland and authorised 
officers of the Council on request. 

37. Throughout the SEV licensed hours a member of staff fully trained on the 
operation of CCTV must be present in the venue. 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



What is your name? - Name What is your organisation? - 

Answer

What is your organisation? - Details Do you think it would make sense 

to align the zones for SEV licensing 

with those already in place for 

alcohol licensing, namely one zone 

for the city centre and one zone for 

outwith the city centre? 

A link to the map showing the 

extent of the city centre zone can 

be found under "Related" on the 

Overview Page.  - Answer

If no, what would you suggest are 

appropriate zones for SEV 

licensing?  - Answer

What impact, if any, do you think 

SEVs currently have on the 

community? - Reasons for Answer

Do you think there would be 

positive/negative impacts on SEV 

operators or workers if they were 

licensed? If yes, please explain 

what you think these would be?​ - 

Reasons for Answer

Do you think there would be 

positive/negative impacts on the 

communities and surrounding 

vicinity to SEVs if they were 

licensed?  If yes, please explain 

what you think these would be?​ - 

Reasons for Answer

Do you agree that it would be 

acceptable to have an SEV in or 

near the following areas or 

landmarks? - Answer - Residential 

Areas

Do you agree that it would be 

acceptable to have an SEV in or 

near the following areas or 

landmarks? - Answer - Retail 

Shopping Areas

Do you agree that it would be 

acceptable to have an SEV in or 

near the following areas or 

landmarks? - Answer - Late Night 

Entertainment Areas

Do you agree that it would be 

acceptable to have an SEV in or 

near the following areas or 

landmarks? - Answer - Financial 

Institutions e.g. Bank

Do you agree that it would be 

acceptable to have an SEV in or 

near the following areas or 

landmarks? - Answer - Historical 

Buildings

Do you agree that it would be 

acceptable to have an SEV in or 

near the following areas or 

landmarks? - Answer - Sports 

Centres

Do you agree that it would be 

acceptable to have an SEV in or 

near the following areas or 

landmarks? - Answer - Cultural or 

Leisure Facilities

Do you agree that it would be 

acceptable to have an SEV in or 

near the following areas or 

landmarks? - Answer - Places used 

for celebrations or 

commemoration

Do you agree that it would be 

acceptable to have an SEV in or 

near the following areas or 

landmarks? - Answer - Places of 

Worship

Do you agree that it would be 

acceptable to have an SEV in or 

near the following areas or 

landmarks? - Answer - Play areas or 

parks

Do you agree that it would be 

acceptable to have an SEV in or 

near the following areas or 

landmarks? - Answer - Schools or 

other places of education

Do you agree that it would be 

acceptable to have an SEV in or 

near the following areas or 

landmarks? - Answer - Youth 

Facilities

Do you agree that it would be 

acceptable to have an SEV in or 

near the following areas or 

landmarks? - Answer - Women's 

refuge accommodation

Do you agree that it would be 

acceptable to have an SEV in or 

near the following areas or 

landmarks? - Answer - Train Station 

or bus station

What maximum number do you 

think the Council should set for 

each of these localities within any 

zone? - Answer - City Centre

What maximum number do you 

think the Council should set for 

each of these localities within any 

zone? - Answer - Rural area

What maximum number do you 

think the Council should set for 

each of these localities within any 

zone? - Answer - Residential area

What maximum number do you 

think the Council should set for 

each of these localities within any 

zone? - Answer - 

Industrial/Commercial Area

Do you believe that imposing 

standard conditions to SEV licences 

would assist in safeguarding the 

wellbeing of performers, 

customers and the wider public?​ - 

Reasons for Answer

Do you think that any of the 

example standard licence 

conditions noted above should be 

adopted as policy and included as 

standard conditions in SEV licences? 

Where possible, please could you 

explain your answer. - Reasons for 

Answer

Can you make any suggestions as to 

how the Committee could 

adequately address the objectives 

within a SEV policy statement. The 

objectives being: ​

preventing public nuisance, crime 

and disorder; ​

securing public safety; ​

Bill  Harrison Individual No They should be limited to the city 

centre.

Significant negative effect in terms 

of anti-social behaviour, noise and 

the "sleaze factor", which makes 

people very uncomfortable when 

walking past these locations.

There would be some benefits if the 

SEVs were licensed in terms of 

public health and protecting 

vulnerable women.

There would be some benefits to 

public safety if police and partner 

agencies were aware of these 

venues and could provide input to 

the Licensing Board/Committee.

Disagree Disagree Neutral Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree 2 0 0 2 Yes (goes without saying...) Yes, to protect vulnerable women 

and reduce crime and disorder

Strictly l imit the number of SEVs 

and impose conditions on their 

street-front appearances

Alasdair Stevenson Individual Yes They have very l ittle impact on the 

community

It would make little difference It would have very l ittle impact Neutral Neutral Agree Neutral Neutral Neutral Neutral Neutral Neutral Neutral Agree Agree Neutral Neutral 6+ 4 3 3 Yes Yes No

Police Service of Scotland Other (please specify below) Statutory agency Yes Given premises currently fitting 

that description are currently 

located within the existing area of 

night time economy, their current 

location is appropriate and has 

minimal impact that small, l imited 

city centre community.  Another 

element impacting on any area 

could be the number of such 

premises.

Yes. There can only be positive 

impact of regulating such activity, 

with regard to public safety and 

that includes customers and 

performers.

Yes, the general public and 

community members would benefit 

as per previous answer.

Disagree Neutral Agree Neutral Neutral Neutral Neutral Neutral Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Neutral 6 0 0 0 yes, provided all  conditions are 

intended to regulate activities and 

protect the public, customers and 

performers.

Yes, principally to negate 

exploitation and trafficking.

Application of conditions as per 

our response ID: ANON-P1AW-

H7HE-5 and to include:

•	Where a specific activity is 

assessed as being higher risk, such 

as bondage, S&M acts, flagellation 

etc. it should be a condition that a 

copy of photographic identity of 

any participant is obtained and 

retained in accordance with GDPR. 

Innes Walker Other Business (please specify 

below)

BID Company Aberdeen City Centre Yes These premises currently operate 

within an area recognised as being 

synonymous with the operation of 

the evening and night time 

economy.  As premise tend to 

operate later in the evening, the 

impact on the community is 

minimal.  Noise impact associated 

with venues sell ing alcohol will  be 

present irrespective of the 

presence of SEVs.  I am not aware 

I am supportive of l icensing to 

ensure that the welfare of workers 

are recognised and promoted.  The 

associated positive publicity will  

benefit operators with the 

potential to have venues seen as 

safe and professional rather than 

'seedy' and exploitative.

Yes.  Regulation is far more likely 

to identify and deal with negative 

impacts such as ASB or sexual 

offending.  It also provides that 

important focus on the welfare of 

performers, ensure exploitation or 

trafficking is not present.  The 

process would also allow those 

residing in the locality to fed into 

decision making and report issues.

Disagree Agree Agree Agree Agree Disagree Disagree Agree Neutral Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Agree 6+ 6+ 0 4 Yes.  These would be vital in 

preventing exploitation and people 

trafficking.

Yes.  Both of them for the reasons 

given.

Imposition of conditions and an 

inspection regime which, whilst 

allowing the venue to operate, 

clearly indicates that abuses will  

be identified and dealt with swiftly.

clare roberts Individual No Sev should be allowed only in 

areas that are NOT near housing or 

areas where any

Members of the public and in 

particular women might expect to 

walk at night 

Ie in industrial areas similar 

places non-peopled only

Apart from noise etc of l icences 

premises the sexualisation of 

women makes women feel

Uncomfortable and increases their 

concerns for their safety as such 

decreases their l ikelihood of going 

out after dark or travelling by 

themselves.

These concerns may be real ie such 

premises increase the probability 

of harassment or attack

Obviously l icensing is better than 

nothing!!! But not all  jobs are good 

jobs!!

That rather depends on how tough 

the licensing laws are. If they 

succeed in protecting communities 

and people - in particular by not 

constraining the freedoms of 

women to

Safely move around the city then 

it’s positive

If you think you can have secs in 

the city centre because people go 

their for entertainment then it’s a 

Disagree Disagree Disagree Neutral Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree 0 2 0 2 Obviously.  May well be 

insufficient but checking of work 

conditions is always good

Yes 

Obviously

No.

Rob Rothwell Individual Yes I don't see a significant negative 

impact

Depends on the conditions of 

l icensing. Could enforce useful 

minimum standards for 

cleanliness, pricing, hours.

Positive impact from better run 

venues

Disagree Neutral Agree Neutral Neutral Disagree Disagree Neutral Neutral Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Neutral 6+ 6+ 2 6+ Yes Yes. Plus also consider things l ike 

cleanliness, workers rights etc

.

Dewi Morgan Individual Yes As indicated in your preamble, they 

should not be in residential, 

schooling or other  locations 

commonly used by children. 

Impact is l ikely to be  modest, 

assuming window displays are 

modest

Positive impact - Being registered 

means the operator being named - 

which encourages responsibil ity.

Positive impact - Being registered 

means the operator being named - 

which encourages responsibil ity. 

and also creates ready access for 

community to direct complaints if 

necessary.

Disagree Agree Agree Neutral Neutral Disagree Disagree Neutral Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree 3 1 0 3 The above seems reasonable, 

however: 

The personal details of performers 

is potentially problematic - if 

publicly accessible, or accessed 

il legally, this could be used for 

blackmail purposes.

Discovering trafficked persons  

could be positive, but could also 

cause an il legal immigrant, 

possibly a refugee from violence, 

Acceptable provided adequate 

protection of performers is 

achieved

no comments

G Beattie Individual Yes Negligible unless there there is 

explicit  external advertising.

Since they are l ikely to sell  alcohol 

, they can be policed under the 

existing legislation

.

Neutral. Can't imagine the opening 

of SEV would be likely or 

economically viable if opened 

within a suburban housing area.

Disagree Neutral Agree Neutral Disagree Neutral Agree Neutral Disagree Disagree Disagree Neutral Agree 6+ 0 0 3 I don't have enough information to 

give a reasoned reply

I'm not sure why the information 

should be more available for 

performers that any other 

employees .

Would the same information be 

required for performers in  music  

venues and theatres?

No.

Why is it assumed that a SEV 

would be likely to cause any of the 

above.?

Losa Gill Individual Yes Dont think gives a very good look 

of the area i  dont want to be 

passong by with children and have 

this going  on beside them 

aberdeen is already riddled with 

prostitution on most streets as 

they use private rented flats

If l icenced could cause carry ons 

to happen in house of 

inappropriate behaviour

Yes people staying longer more 

drunk to have entertainment

Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree 0 0 0 0 They need to have protection in 

place for staff and customers 

shouldn't be allowed to drink and 

need to be kept regulated

Yes this ensures people coming 

frlm abroad wont come just to earn 

easy money it ensures no children 

under age being stuck in these 

positions just to get punters in 

these places can take in underager 

for just their looks someone has to 

approve staff other than premises

Apart from always checking up on 

the premises which council won't 

do as long as they are paying their 

bil ls no one will  blink an eye

Tracey Duncan Individual No SEV Establishments should be 

located out-with Aberdeen City 

Centre  shopping areas, so that 

citizens and children do not have 

to see such venues in shopping or 

hospitality areas, I as a mature 

woman, a parent find such venues 

undesirable. 

I do not want my child raised in a 

City that permits venues to openly 

advertise on large bil lboards near 

They are very prominent in 

Aberdeen, it looks sleazy and 

portrays our. It's and its Council as 

one that cares nothing other than 

about revenue. 

Little consideration seems to be 

given to residents whom detest 

these such places in prominent 

locations .

No, they SHOULD all  be Licensed, 

benefits to them and others out-

way any detriment.

Yes keep disease levels down, 

traceability and keep criminal 

element away.

Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree 0 2 0 2 Would help standardise the 

industry and its working policies, 

and what is expected from staff 

and owners. Would keep 

customers safer and the wider 

public would (possibly) feel that a 

l icensed and monitored industry 

may act more responsible, 

although majority of the public 

seems to find these premises very 

unwelcome within city centres 

There should be clear policies and 

statutes within the licensing of 

these establishments and its 

workers, they should be in-line 

with policies for city centre 

development plans , they should 

not be at the expense of public l ife.

There should be strict conditions 

for all  S.E.V's, that non-adherence 

sees fines or penalties/closure,  

There should be NO advertising out 

with any signage, the wider public 

should be considered and during 

open hours no loud music and 

doorways staff  should refrain 

from encouraging passers by  , 

there should be no "openly 

advertising " approach. Discretion 

and consideration for children of a 

daytime and public otherwise.

Individual No None Limited impact due to opening 

hours. Later in the day, the 

proliferation of venues in a small 

area will  change the character of 

the area, with a l ikelihood of large 

male groups such as stag do's. This 

is l ikely to make the area 

unwelcoming to other people 

frequenting the area.

Only positive for workers. Any 

abuses of those working in venues 

should be easier to address by 

enforcement of l icence conditions.

Positive, as any evidence of 

disorderliness contrary to l icence 

condItions can lead to enforcement 

action, thus protecting the 

surrounding vicinity.

Neutral Neutral Agree Agree Neutral Neutral Neutral Neutral Neutral Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Neutral 3 0 0 0 Yes, with the emphasis being the 

well-being of performers, ensuring 

that no exploitation takes place.

Immigration status checks to 

ensure trafficking is not taking 

place.

No

Sonya Individual Yes Young people mainly girls are 

seeinh it as glamorous  because it 

is so open and in amongst the 

popular  pubs and clubs. This 

needs to be more regulated  and a 

closer eye kept so that vulnerable  

you womrn are not taking 

advantage of. 

People who stay close to the 

venues are also often approached 

Positive for the workers but 

negitive for the employer. These 

clubs should not be allowed to hire 

anyone under 21 and not have the 

girls standing outside tbe doors 

advertising the business. There are 

families who stay close by

Positive as everyone would need to 

abide by rules

Disagree Disagree Neutral Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree 1 1 0 1 Yes hugely. Girls should be over 21 

so they are not taken advantage of

Like all  business  they should have 

policies to abide by and codes to 

follow. I am not against these 

clubs but age limits must be 

increased and tighter laws for the 

owners

Up tbe age limit for workers and 

clients, more checks of owners and 

staff, not so much advertising and 

not so close to family homes

Duncan Wright Individual Yes Exclusion of women and gay men 

from social events

Positive. - venues need to have 

conditions imposed to safeguard 

workers' rights

Positive - conditions can be 

imposed to ensure reduced Impact 

on local residents

Neutral Agree Agree Neutral Disagree Disagree Neutral Neutral Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Neutral 4 1 0 4 Yes All no

Tony Cochrane SEV Trade Owner of Private Eyes chain Yes No harmful impact. And example 

we have operated in Aberdeen for 

23 years and have no issues. They 

are low key operations and create 

no problems

Positive of no undue financial 

burden imposed on them. And 

sensible rules out in place to 

ensure the well run businesses 

continue to operate in a good 

manner and any rogue operators 

are closed down just as in any 

other sector.

No real impact on surrounding 

communities as these businesses 

never have any issues outwith the 

premises. Unlike other l icensed 

premises. They give no rowdy 

customers leaving at closing time 

and tend to have small capacities 

and customers attendance spread 

out over the evening and zero 

issues at closing times.

Agree Agree Agree Agree Agree Agree Agree Agree Neutral Neutral Neutral Neutral Neutral Agree 5 1 1 1 Yes We already have robust system 

in place and have done since first 

opening

Yes in fact they already are a 

l icense condition And police can 

check these records at any time 

It’s also a safety measure if a girl  

from outwith Aberdeen should 

become il l  or have accident that we 

have a next of kin contact

I would be happy to share our 

safety of workers measures with 

the committee

Robyn Individual Yes I do not think there is any impact 

at all.

No. As long as they can prove 

licences and follow policy and 

procedures.

No, as Aberdeen is an open city to 

many cultures, ways of l ife and 

many many people.

Agree Agree Agree Agree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Agree 4 2 0 1 It would help a lot, as some 

workers as its not got l icences 

would be too scared to come 

forward when something  

happened to them or someone they 

know or vice versa as a customer 

incase something happens you 

have something to help you.

Make sure they have the right to be 

here in the UK, make sure their 

health (physical and mental) is in 

a good position, they are over 18, 

and have a place of residence all  

with documents.

Have a regular police position or 

talks with workers.

Ross Individual Yes SEV’s have a negative impact on the 

community.

It would be positive because those 

operators would presumably have 

to adhere to a framework of 

guidelines and policies in place to 

safeguard all  stake holders 

concerned in the running of said 

SEV’s.

Even if they are l icensed, the SEV’s 

have a negative impact on the 

communities and surrounding 

vicinities in my opinion.

Disagree Disagree Agree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree 0 0 0 0 Yes for i  assume that in order to 

win a l icense the operator must 

adhere to and demonstrate 

adherence to a strict set of policies 

and guidelines as stipulated as 

part of the license obligations.

Yes for reasons already stated. Follow the lead of established SEV 

operators and the measures 

already in place for those areas in 

the UK and also further afield eg 

Amsterdam or other notable 

locations with SEV’s.

M Smith Individual No I do not think that any area of the 

city is appropriate for SEV 

licensing.

I think that SEVs have a detrimental 

impact on any community in which 

they are located. They attract a 

disproportionate number groups 

and individuals who are 

emboldened by too much alcohol 

which results in excessive noise 

for the community and the type of 

behaviour that results in l itter, 

vomit and damage to property.

I would think that SEV operators 

would consider that l icensing 

would have a negative impact on 

their business, however I think that 

it would have a positive impact for 

workers.

Any breaches of l icenses would 

have to be properly punished by 

fines and or closure of premises 

for any positive impact.

Any licensing scheme out in place 

should only have a positive impact 

for communities otherwise there's 

l ittle point in having one.

The scheme would have to ensure 

that communities are given 

sufficient opportunities to give 

input to l icensing decisions and 

any input should carry a 

significant weight when decisions 

Disagree Disagree Neutral Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree 0 0 0 1 Yes, I belive that comprehensive 

standard conditions would 

contribute to the protection of 

performers, customers and the 

wider public.  

As commented before the 

enforcement of such conditions 

must be strict and frequent 

otherwise any such standards 

would not be fit for purpose.

I think the examples of standard 

licence conditions shoud all  be 

adopted as policy.

I would go further and include 

operators to be obligated to 

provide financial details to prove 

that workers are being properly 

recompensed. 

Operators financial accounts 

As per question 13 :

I would go further and include 

operators to be obligated to 

provide financial details to prove 

that workers are being properly 

recompensed. 

Operators financial accounts 

should aso be subject to yearly 

audits to ensure that the capital 

raised to start/operate the 

business comes from legitimate 

Alan Individual Yes They provide a safe place for both 

men and women to go to feel the 

closeness with someone that they 

do not have already,

It would provide a specific l icence 

to avoid over populating but I don’t 

think there should be additional 

restrictions in place compared to 

other l icence venues

No impact as they already operate 

well, as long as they remain the 

same with good operators

Agree Agree Agree Agree Agree Agree Agree Agree Agree Agree Agree Agree Agree Agree 5 1 1 1 They already are due to the payroll 

I don’t think it would be a good 

idea to impose further restrictions 

or conditions on these venues

They should be left to operate as 

per any other venue why make it 

more difficult and then risk the 

workers or customers going to 

work on the street

Let them operate as any other 

l icensed venue without further 

restrictions this covers all  the 5 

l icence objectives.

Reducing violence against women 

is not on licensing objectives but 

they do provide a safe area for 

women and men

Pamela Landsborough Individual Yes I don’t think it makes a difference. 

In Aberdeen you know the places to 

go. Not everyone agrees with them 

but it should be a personal choice.

Licensed premises can only bring 

benefits.

The wider community might feel 

safer to know they were regulated 

and had to adhere to strict rules.

Disagree Disagree Agree Neutral Neutral Neutral Neutral Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Neutral 6+ 6+ 0 1 Definitely, you want to know the 

workers are being looked after and 

not exploited.

Both. I have know of underage girls 

working as “dancers” in bars 

before and stricter rules could 

protect against this.

Not fully sure how to answer this 

question but there will  always be a 

demand for adult entertainment 

clubs etc. The more you can show 

they are being monitored and 

regulated, with security etc then 

the public should look at them no 

different from any other night club 

etc.

Lastly these clubs should not just 

Individual Yes Provide employment, variety of 

venues to choose from

Costs involved to l icensees could 

result in less taking up the trade

No Neutral Neutral Agree Neutral Neutral Disagree Disagree Neutral Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree 6+ 3 3 3 If it is an unlicensed venue not 

sell ing alcohol then yes.

Na Same style of setup as alcohol 

l icensing Scotland

P
age 27



Craig Brown Individual No Limited in our city at present which 

is positive.

Unknown Negative- as with current alcohol 

l icensing the impact on local 

communities is intolerable. Clubs 

open til l  3-4am leads to violence 

and injuries. Having SEV impacts 

the vulnerable and our local 

communities.

Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree 0 0 0 0 Yes makes sense if there were to be 

licensed SEVs (in my opinion these 

should not be permitted within 

Aberdeen city and sends the wrong 

message to society and risks 

exploitation and harm.

All- if going ahead with this policy. Address by having a policy not 

allowing SEVs.

Kim Individual No Alcohol lower inhibitions and 

provides these venues with 

customers that otherwise wouldn't 

have gone there when you have 

SEV’s right in the middle of town.

Given the recent headlines, we 

know that SEV’s are all  about 

objectifying women and we should 

not encourage a new generation of 

young people to see this as the 

I think it increases the risk of 

attacks from violent men who 

perhaps wouldn’t have been in 

such an uncontrollable mindset 

before entering the premises. 

Focusing on the next generation, 

they should not feel it is normal to 

stand and stare at women 

stripping as they jeer and throw 

cash at her. It is extremely 

If no SEV’s aren’t an option then 

controlled in the next best step

As above, I think the best thing for 

communities is to control them to 

reduce the normalising of this 

behaviour and the risk some men 

may pose because of them.

Disagree Neutral Disagree Neutral Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Neutral Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree 0 1 0 2 Similar to previous questions.  I 

disagree that we need SEV’s at all, 

if you must then they need 

controlled and moved away from

the town centre where their 

customers leave into the town 

centre at closing time feeling l ike 

objectifying women is acceptable. 

https://theconversation.com/no-

harm-done-sexual-entertainment-

No, you’re focusing on the 

performers and cracking down on 

immigration. I understand human 

trafficking is a massive problem 

but you’re overlooking the problem 

the customers pose! 

You are supporting the headlines 

that we see today by allowing any 

SEV’s in the city centre.

Ban all  SEV’s. 

If you have too many people in the 

council that support hegemonic 

masculinity because they directly 

benefit from it, then at the very 

least:

Dont provide them with an alcohol 

l icense - it increases the harm 

posed to the community by 

Fiona Young Individual Yes Very l ittle, if any. Licensing can be beneficial for the 

workers, giving a level of security 

and protection.

I don’t feel it would make much 

difference

Neutral Agree Agree Neutral Agree Neutral Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Agree 5 1 0 0 The individuals most at risk are the 

performers themselves so 

imposing standard licensing 

conditions  could enhance their 

safety and provide a level of legal 

protection, giving them more 

credibil ity.

preventing public nuisance, crime 

and disorder;

licensing could reduce the 

likelihood of larger crowds of men 

attending these venues en masse 

and becoming rowdy or causing a 

public nuisance inside or outside 

of the venue. 

reducing violence against women. ​

Limits on large groups; no 

individual unsupervised contact 

between customers and 

performers, strict door policy, 

appropriate location and opening 

hours, discreet signage and 

advertising, regular checks to 

ensure the premises are clean and 

safe and that the women working 

there are doing so of their own 

volition, are not under pressure to 

STEVEN CANALE Individual Yes None because all  the current clubs 

are within the city centre which is 

night-time economy.

Clubs should be licenced.

Workers should not be licensed 

but registered with the club 

concerned and provide details 

showing self employment status

No because they are not currently 

in any residential areas.

Disagree Agree Agree Agree Disagree Agree Agree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Agree 6 0 0 2 The first example given above does 

not indicate the form it takes. If a 

hard copy this could be potentially 

used for identity fraud. The list 

should be on a computer system in 

an office( not public area) and 

secured appropriately. Access 

should be restricted to the owner 

and/or manager.

Workers from abroad should be 

able to show that they are entitled 

Both examples above need to be 

expanded to make sure they are 

secure and cover all  areas.

Keep the clubs in the city centre 

and restrict opening times to 

evenings only.

Joanna Matheson Individual No A smaller sub zone for sev within 

the alcohol zone.

Detrimental impact, there are too 

many sev clubs and they are too 

aligned with where night clubs are. 

This encourages people who are 

going out to then stop in at a sev 

on they way home if they don't pick 

anyone up.  As a women on a night 

out it makes me feel unsafe having 

to walk past strip clubs because of 

the men coming out of them.

Yes they should be licensed as 

there should be consequences for 

those who don't protect and look 

after there workers.

Positive if l icensing. Disagree Agree Disagree Agree Agree Agree Neutral Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree 3 2 0 6 Yes Yes

Safety and security for those 

working in the clubs.

-

LOUISE ANDERSON Individual No I do not believe that in 2021 any of 

these businesses are appropriate 

at all, its misogynistic and fuels 

the belief that men need to see 

naked women to for their own 

sexual gratification and pleasure

i also do not beleive that there is 

not trafficked women or abused 

woman in these premises

i believe it is enforcing the belief 

that women are just to be googled 

at by sexually depraved males. 

These men then leave these places 

feeling sexually aroused or 

frustrated and it putting other 

women at risk

They should all  be l icensed and 

strictly controlled so no person 

working in  them are trafficked- 

you only have to look at 

Amsterdam to see that their once 

great model for equality is no a 

total shambles and women re 

trafficked form all  over Europe

its 2021 for gods sake not the dark 

ages, really should this be a thing 

negative- its sleazy Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree 0 0 0 0 shouldnt this have been the first 

thing to think about ???

should  be allowed in frist place... 

black l ives matters but not women 

dancing about naked for a load of 

drunken men???

how can you reduce harm to 

women when your allowing this??

 its sexualising women as objects 

of entertainment

Frances Individual No area is far too big, any sexual 

entertainment should be contained 

to one very small area if it needs to 

be permitted at all  and very strictly 

policed so that women are not 

subjected to any abuse or 

harassment and are safe.

I think it will  be to the detriment of 

any community to allow sexual 

entertainment premises in their 

area, but if it is going to go ahead, 

then it should be in non residential 

areas only.  It should be far from 

schools and nurseries, parks, 

shops where children would be 

likely to visit, shopping centres, 

play areas, swimming pools, and 

gyms etc.

The premises should be highly  

regulated to ensure there is no 

exploitation of women, no people 

trafficking and no forced 

prostitution.  It is all  about the 

titi l lation of men so there should 

be very strict regulations on 

distance/touching (not allowed) 

and there should be strong 

regulations around safety of 

women once they finish work and 

No positive impact to any 

community to enable sexual 

entertainment.  Only positive thing 

that I can see anyone would be 

remotely interested in would be 

about profit.  That is not good for 

community only business.

Disagree Disagree Neutral Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree 0 0 0 0 Yes, see my previous answers. Yes, all  of them. No suggestions.

Beverley Dunlop Individual No No zones Hugely damaging of women. Link to 

sexual violence are well 

documented. Links to porn drugs 

and prostitution are well 

document.  At odds with equality 

policies. Makes women unsafe in 

the public domain as oversexed 

mean leave these establishments.

Positive because conditions can be 

applied but negative overall  whilst 

they are allowed to operate.

Postive because of conditions but 

negative overall  for the reasons 

given

Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree 0 0 0 0 Potentially to performers, 

customers are generally men 

seeking sexual services so they 

wouldn't;'t see any well being 

benefit but rathe a restriction. . No 

safefguarding benefit  to wider 

public. Women in the public  will  

sti l l  be harassed by over sexed 

men offering to pay them £20 to 

see their tits as frequently 

happened.

No, you're victim blaming 

performers and forcing generally 

already compromised women 

usually difficult circumstances 

who aren't even employed 

properply to carry the 

responsibil ity for this damaging 

activity with no responsibil ity by 

the license holder.

Set the limit at nil.

Oversexed men are a public 

nuisance and regularly harass 

women in the public domain.

They are a public nuisance as well 

as a dance to women safeguarding.

There are established links to 

drugs, prostitution, trafficking and 

porn.

Is this the message you want to 

Kenneth Gordon Individual No Don’t understand the requirement 

for zones at all.

They provide an employment 

opportunity. They provide 

entertainment to those who attend. 

Other community members can 

choose not to attend.

Licensing may provide safer 

working conditions for the women 

and lessen the likelihood of 

exploitation.

No real difference to the wider 

community.

Disagree Disagree Agree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree Disagree 3 0 0 0 Yes. By having a set of rules in 

place it promotes good behaviours 

and helps ensure only those of 

good character run and work in 

these establishments.

It also ensures a consistent 

approach across all  

establishments.

No To protect against public nuisance 

and exposure to minors it makes 

sense to have these venues in 

designated areas.

They must have a proper door 

policy with SIA accredited staff and 

compulsory criminal background 

checks.

P
age 28


	Agenda
	4.1 Declarations of Interest
	6.1 Minute of Meeting of the Licensing Sub Committee of 22 September 2021
	7.1 Sexual Entertainment Venue Licensing - COM/21/231
	ACC-SEV draft policy
	Appendix 2 - Redacted Consultation results


